
For enquiries about your Neighbourhood Council or about this meeting please contact: 
Neighbourhood  Manager: - Julie Rivett on 01733 864080 E-mail: Julie.rivett@peterborough.gov.uk 
Democratic Services: Alex Daynes on 01733 452447 E-mail Alexander.daynes@peterborough.gov.uk 

 
 

 

All members of the public in NORTHBOROUGH, BARNACK, GLINTON AND 

WITTERING, NEWBOROUGH and EYE AND THORNEY WARDS are invited 

to attend a meeting of their Neighbourhood Council (Rural North) 

on 

Monday 13th December 2010 at Newborough Primary School, School Road, 

Newborough, Peterborough at 7.00pm (6.00 pm display) 

This Neighbourhood Council meeting will also include a display by Edward Moss, the 
Project Co-ordinator for the TV Digital Switchover Help Scheme in the Anglia area.  Ed 
will be there from 6pm to answer your questions on the Digital Switchover and the Help 

Scheme available.   

 

PROGRAMME 
 

Time Agenda Item  

1.   Apologies for absence 

To receive any apologies from members unable to attend the 
meeting. 
 

Chairman 

2.  Declarations of interest 

Members to declare any personal/personal prejudicial 
interests in any items on this agenda. 
 

Chairman 

3.  Minutes from the previous meeting and matters arising 

 

Chairman 

4.  Open Session 
 
An opportunity for any member of the public, elected and co-
opted members of the Neighbourhood Council to raise 
anything that affects your area and to suggest items for 
future meetings. 
 

ALL 

5.  Neighbourhood Council Budget 
 
A chance for attendees to discuss the proposed projects for 
the £25K capital budget allocated to Rural North 

Chairman 

Cllr P Nash (Chairman) 
Northborough: Cllr P Hillier 
Barnack: Cllr D Over 
Glinton and Wittering: Cllr J Holdich & Cllr D Lamb 
Newborough: Cllr D Harrington 
Eye and Thorney: Cllr R Dobbs and Cllr D Sanders 

Public Document Pack



For enquiries about your Neighbourhood Council or about this meeting please contact: 
Neighbourhood  Manager: - Julie Rivett on 01733 864080 E-mail: Julie.rivett@peterborough.gov.uk 
Democratic Services: Alex Daynes on 01733 452447 E-mail Alexander.daynes@peterborough.gov.uk 

Neighbourhood Council before elected ward members vote 
on these projects. 
 

6.  Saving Money on your Energy Bills 
 
Hear about the work of the fuel poverty team and learn how 
you may be entitled to free energy saving measures. 
 

Fuel Poverty 
Team 

7.  Peterborough City Council Budget 
 
This will be a presentation on the Council’s annual budget. 
 

John Harrison 

8.  Feedback from Rural Affairs Working Group 
 
Feedback from the Rural Affairs Working group who are 
looking at the future of neighbourhood councils within the 
rural area. 
 

Henry Clark 

9.  Next Meeting  
 
The next meeting will be held upon 17th March 2011 at the 
Manor Community Centre, Eye. - 7 pm start. 
 

 

 



For enquiries about your Neighbourhood Council or about this meeting please contact: 
Neighbourhood  Manager: - Julie Rivett on 01733 864080 E-mail: Julie.rivett@peterborough.gov.uk 
Democratic Services: Alex Daynes on 01733 452447 E-mail Alexander.daynes@peterborough.gov.uk 

 

All members of the public in NORTHBOROUGH, BARNACK, GLINTON AND 

WITTERING, NEWBOROUGH and EYE AND THORNEY WARDS are invited 

to attend a meeting of the Rural North Neighbourhood Council (N&W1) 

on 

Monday 13 December at 7.00 pm 

at Newborough Primary School 
 

STANDING INVITATIONS 
 

NAME REPRESENTING 

Ady Slack Cambridgeshire Fire & Rescue Service 

Inspector Louise Angel Cambridgeshire Police 

Cherry Lester Children’s Services 

Steve Dumbrell Cross Keys Homes 

Chris Campling NHS Peterborough 

David Bacon NHS Peterborough 

Christine Graham Safer Peterborough Partnership 

A E Hovell Thorney Community Association 

Sadie Beales Glinton Community Association 

Tammy Tushingham, Helpston & Etton Community Association 

Jenny Bigginton Eye Community Association 

Andy Bagworth Maxey Community Association 

Mrs Carole Robinson Newborough & Borough Fen Community 
Association 

Melba Lake Northborough Community Association 

  

 Parish Councils within the area 
 
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



  
 

DRAFT MINUTES  

of a meeting of the Neighbourhood Council (N&W1) - Rural North held at 

the John Clare Primary School on 16 September 2010 

 
MEMBERS PRESENT: 
Chairman:  Cllr P Nash 
Barnack:  Cllr D Over 
Northborough:  Cllr P Hiller 
Newborough:  Cllr D Harrington 
Eye and Thorney: Cllr R Dobbs, D Sanders 
  
OFFICERS PRESENT: 
Peter Heath-Brown  Planning Policy Manager, PCC 
Barry Kirk   Infrastructure Planning & Delivery Group Manager, PCC 
Julie Rivett   Neighbourhood Manager, PCC 
Alex Daynes   Senior Governance Officer, PCC 
 
37 members of the public attended the meeting as local residents and also representatives 
from Eye Junior Youth Club, Eye Open Space Group, Peterborough LINk, Children’s 
Services (Cherry Lester), Evening Telegraph, Thorney Pensioner’s Association, Helpston 
Parish Council, Ailsworth Parish Council, Ufford Parish Council, RAF Wittering, Eye Parish 
Council, Bainton & Ashton Parish Council, Glinton Parish Council, Barnack Parish Council, 
Thorney Parish Council and Peakirk Parish Council. 
 

ITEM DISCUSSION AND ACTIONS ACTION 

1. Apologies Apologies were received from Cllrs Holdich and Lamb. 
 

2. Declarations of 
Interest 

 

None. 
 

3. Minutes of the 
last meeting 

The Members of the Neighbourhood Council agreed the minutes from 
the meeting held 17 June 2010 subject to the following additions and 
amendments: 

• Actions from item 3 will be dealt with in item 8, Feedback 
from Rural Road Safety Meeting, of tonight’s agenda. 

 

 

 The Chair announced that the order of the agenda would change with 
the Neighbourhood Council budget (previously item10) being dealt with 
as item 6 on the agenda. 
 

 

4.  Local Transport 
Plan 

 

The Infrastructure Planning & Delivery Group Manager introduced the 
item and advised that consultation on the Local Transport Plan 3 
(LTP3) had begun and he was seeking further ideas and comments 
from this meeting for inclusion in the consultation. 
 

 

Cllr P Nash (Chairman) 
Northborough: Cllr P Hiller 
Barnack: Cllr D Over 
Glinton and Wittering: Cllr J Holdich & Cllr D Lamb 
Newborough: Cllr D Harrington 
Eye and Thorney: Cllr R Dobbs & Cllr D Sanders 
 

1



The Chairman requested that the need for a shuttle bus from the city 
centre to the new hospital and a tourist bus for tourist sites such as 
Flag Fen, Nene Valley Railway etc be included in the consultation 
responses.  Further comments included: 
 

• Cllr Sanders – use of public transport should be encouraged 
but consultation overlooks need for car use; 

• Cllr Over – improved links to other towns and villages 
needed, not just to central Peterborough; 

• Cllr Harrington – buses are very important for rural transport 
and travel to access services; 

• Dale McKean – rural bus service needs to be more reliable; 

• Park and Ride was good at Christmas but should not 
increase in price or the incentive to use it is reduced. 

 

5.  Site Allocations 
Document 

 

The Clerk advised that Members were not obliged to vote to show 
support or opposition tonight but officers were requesting opinions and 
comments on the proposed sites for development in the area.  
Comments from elected Members would not bind them to that point of 
view for future meetings discussing the Site Allocations Document. 
 
The Planning Policy Manager introduced the Site Allocations plan and 
the approval process within the council that was needed before a final 
document was approved including:  
 

• This is latest version on current recommendations from 
officers which will go to Cabinet (8 November), then full 
Council (8 December) to approve a draft version for 6 week 
consultation then on to the secretary of state and inspector 
and finally to full Council (possibly December 2011)for formal 
adoption; 

• Some sites already have planning permission in this area; 

• Gypsy and Traveller pitches now dropped from the 
document; none will be allocated.  A transit site will not be in 
this area; 

 
Comments and responses to questions included: 
 

• Cllr Sanders – Eye and Thorney residents have already given 
responses at previous consultations; Parish councils’ 
opinions should be foremost in planning considerations; 
officers must collate previous consultation responses before 
a final draft is presented; 

• Thorney Parish Council – what happened to sites proposed in 
flood plain areas near Thorney? These sites were removed 
as the Environment Agency opposed on the basis that they 
are in a higher risk flood zone. Flood zones are based on the 
assumption that there are no flood defences (as they could 
fail). It would therefore be difficult to put these sites back in; 
Why additional site off Sandpit Road after the previous 
document? There was an initial concern with the site which 
has now been reconsidered as acceptable; 

• Helpston Parish Council – 61 new dwellings proposed for 
Helpston when 45 were earmarked for the village envelope in 
total.  Are figures from Core Strategy still valid? Requests city 
councillors object to the Site Allocations document; 

• Glinton Parish Council – Concerned that city council will seek 

 

2



to build more houses to gain from government incentives; 

• Eye Open Space Group – Previous opposition to growth in 
Eye was not listened to.  Over 1000 people opposed to 
growth outside the current village envelope wrote to the 
council.  Need employment in the village, not outside the 
village.  Concerned about size of proposed housing 
developments for Eye as employment site not now included; 

• Cllr Over – Developments are not sustainable as people have 
to work and shop outside villages because no employment 
development for rural areas.  No evidence that more houses 
are needed or wanted.  Little infrastructure at the moment so 
wouldn’t cope with more people.  This area will lose valuable 
agricultural land and countryside if housing developments 
take place; 

• Eye Junior Youth Club - Concern that no consideration given 
for impact on local doctors, youth clubs, schools and 
amenities etc which are already oversubscribed; 

• Planning Policy Manager - Parish Councils can provide land 
for cemeteries; 3 sites for a city council cemetery proposed in 
the Castor and Ailsworth area currently open for consultation; 

• Re Core Strategy – sites proposed in the document were due 
to full Council voting on that level of development in the rural 
area so officers are now obliged to find the sites to meet the 
agreed development level; 

• Helpston Parish Council – Must ensure that the government 
Inspector receives correct information from officers in the first 
instance when considering sites. 

 
The clerk was requested to note that no favourable comments to 
support the Site Allocations Document were forthcoming. 
 

6.  Neighbourhood 
Council Budget 

Cllr Hiller updated members on the allocated £25k advising that three 
projects had been submitted so far.  Comments, questions and 
responses included: 
 

• Neighbourhood Manager – no decisions made yet on the bids 
received.  Would have to be a city councillor decision on 
which bids were approved.  No current closing date to receive 
bids for funding;  

• Clerk advises – as it is city council funding, it would be city 
council Members to take a final decision on funds; 

• Neighbourhood Manager – the funding is allocated for the 
2010-11 financial year; 

• Cllr Harrington – need to know the criteria for applying and 
how to apply for the funds. 

 
Neighbourhood Manager advised that there would now be further 
communication forthcoming to elected Members. 
 
ACTION:  Cllr Hiller to take comments on board and ensure 
communication with community regarding criteria to apply for budget. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Cllr Hiller, 
J Rivett 

7.  Census 2011 
 

The Neighbourhood Manager provided information on the Census 2011 
and requested that residents aide the council in contacting hard to 
reach groups to ensure that the census was as comprehensive as 
possible so funding provision from government was accurate. 
 

 

3



Comments and responses included: 
 

• Glinton Parish Council – very important as sets money for 
GPs, policing/service figures for the city area so must ensure 
all residents are included in the census response; 

• D McKean - put in village magazines/newsletters; maybe 
have a workshop for a day in villages to help people to 
complete the forms; 

• Helpston Parish Council – was Census 2011 abandoned? 
No. But might be after 2011; 

 

8.  Protection of 
Rural Roadside 
Verges 

 

Cllr Over introduced a proposed project to manage the protected 
verges in rural areas which could also be applied to the whole of the 
rural area.  Frieda Gosling, a Barnack resident continued, including the 
following information: 
 

• Many verges are protected and PCC managed with no 
cutting from June to August but then everything is cut; 

• Wild flowers and wildlife habitat is destroyed when cut; 

• Propose placing wooden sign posts to indicate protected 
areas (£40 a post, 23 needed for Barnack area and £97.70 
for necessary signs = £1017.70 total); 

 
Comments and responses included: 
 

• Posts are 2.4m high but partly embedded in the ground – 
similar to footpath posts. 

• Why need posts? Just tell PCC not to cut it, a management 
issue – hasn’t worked in the past; 

• Barnack Parish Council – previously had posts but they rotted 
away and now verges have been cut back; 

• Cllr Harrington – must ensure junctions are cut back to 
ensure safety; 

• Glinton Parish Council – could this be a delegated power for 
Parish Councils? 

 
ACTION:  Liaise with relevant officers re the cutting of verges and the 
issues of cutting them. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

JR 

9.  Feedback from 
Rural Road 
Safety meeting 

 

The Neighbourhood Manager updated members following a Road 
Safety meeting held over the summer. 
 
Cllr Over – pass thanks to Clair George for work in Barnack and 
propose the same work in Helpston. 
 
ACTION: contact Cllr Over for Helpston proposals. 
 

 

 

Clair 
George 

10.  Rural Affairs 
Working Group 
Update 

 

Henry Clarke updated the meeting on the proposed changes to how the 
Neighbourhood Council could operate following initial meetings of the 
Rural Parish Working Group including: 
 

• Need to raise awareness of rural issues within the city council 
to reflect in its policies and plans; 

• Combine Rural Working Group, Parish Council Liaison and 
Neighbourhood Council into a Rural Affairs Committee to be 
made up of Ward and Parish Councillors in order to develop 

 

4



policies and strategies to put forward to Council and Cabinet 
and to engage more effectively with other partners and 
service providers; 

• Final proposal for the next meeting; 

• Next working group on 7 October at 6.30pm in Town Hall. 
 
Comments and responses included: 
 

• Only elected representatives would form the group to ensure 
accountability to residents; 

• This Neighbourhood Council already brings local 
representatives together outside Parish Council meetings and 
Ward councillor surgeries; 

• Inclusion of community leaders could add value to the 
strategies from the meeting - community leaders could 
access the new meeting through ward councillors; 

• Would only apply to this area; 

• Leader of the Council wanted this Neighbourhood Council to 
be inclusive for all, not just parish councils; 

• Cllr Over – supports this and welcomes parish and ward 
councillors coming together to clarify voting rights and 
responsibilities;  

• Glinton Parish Council – could consider proportional 
representation so larger villages have greater representation? 
Will consider; What delegated power? Cllr Over - must keep 
the budget allocated to Neighbourhood Council; 

• J Bartlett – when go to Council to adopt this?  Need to draw 
up the terms of reference and aims and have Cllr Hiller and 
Cereste support before going to full Council; 

• Ensure no clashes in functions with Parish Councils. 
 

11. Open Session Audience members were asked to raise further issues or questions 
important to them: 
 

• J Bartlett re public speaking at planning committee – original 
report changed at Full Council when adopted – so must share 
only 10 minutes for speaking with ward councillor – Strongly 
oppose this; agenda item for next time. 

• Not all information goes to parish clerk from PCC.  Not 
always made aware of issues so cannot get involved.  Info 
should go to clerk in first instance.  Must ensure posters for 
meetings include more information; 

• Not all standing invitees attend so how can anyone ask 
questions of them? 

 
ACTION:  1) J Rivett to ensure contact details are correct for all 
parishes;  
2) add planning committee speaking scheme to next agenda. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
JR 
 
JR 

12. Next Meeting 
 

The next meeting is scheduled for Monday 13 December 2010, venue 
to be confirmed. 
 
Next meeting clashes with Thorney Parish Council, can it be changed? 

 

 
Meeting closed at 9.15pm. 

5



6

This page is intentionally left blank



Rural North Neighbourhood Council 
 

Agenda Item 5 

13th December 2010 
 

Financial Report 

 

CAPITAL BUDGET 2010/11 ALLOCATION 

                                
 
1. PURPOSE 

 
1.1 This report sets out proposals for allocating the capital budget of £25,000 for 2010/11 for the 

Rural North Neighbourhood Council.  
 

2. LINKS TO THE SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITY STRATEGY 
 

2.1 Neighbourhood Councils should contribute across the full range of Sustainable Community 
Strategy priorities, which are: 

• Creating opportunities – tackling inequalities 

• Creating strong and supportive communities 

• Creating the country’s environment capital 

• Delivering substantial and sustainable growth 
 

3. BACKGROUND 
 

3.1 Terms of Reference apply to all Neighbourhood Councils and Part 3, Section 3.13.12 stipulates 
the delegation of approving projects within it’s allocated budget   
 
Following a series of information gathering and consultative activities, a series of options have 
been discussed with councillors to determine the allocation of budget for the Neighbourhood 
Council in 2010/11. The following table sets out the detail of the final proposed list of allocations 
which members of the Council are now asked to consider.  
 
The cost of each project is estimated 
 

Creating Strong and Supportive Communities  
£ (Estimated) 

Purchase pool of 
equipment for 
community use 

To increase the capacity for local communities to 
become involved in projects and volunteering 
activities such as Community Action Days, it is 
proposed to purchase high quality gardening, 
painting and litter picking equipment, including 
personal protective clothing. 

£1000.00 

Speed signs for 
Ufford 

This is a contribution towards the purchase of two 
solar powered speed activated signs for Ufford 
Parish Council.  This would help to calm traffic 
and make roads within the parish safer.  A police 
survey has shown that over 60% of vehicles 

£3000.00 

R E C O M M E N D A T I O N S 

 
FROM: Julie Rivett, Neighbourhood Manager North & West, Contact number: 864080 

 
That this Neighbourhood Council: 
 
1. Considers the proposals for allocation of the capital budget of £25,000 for 2010/11; 
2. Approves which proposals will receive an allocation of the budget; 
3. Agrees to a reduction in the individual allocations should the approved proposals exceed the 
£25,000 budget, to be determined by the Neighbourhood Manager. 

 

7



travelling through the village exceeded the 30mph 
limit and over 21% were travelling at over 40mph 
(Ufford Parish Council have already raised the 
other £5000 needed to purchase these) 

Barnack Pre-School A new cedar wood structure for use as a new pre-
school for the village.  If this project is agreed any 
allocation of funds must be purely for capital 
expenditure and no further future revenue funding 
will be available. 

£16000.00 

Railings outside 
Bainton school bus 
stop 

Installation of safety measures at the Bainton Bus 
Stop.  This is to support the Parish Councils 
request for some safety measures to be in place 
at the Bus Stop in Bainton.  The installation of 
railings may be a solution to this but further advice 
is required as to the most appropriate equipment 

£5000.00 
 

Street Lights for 
Glinton 

Glinton Parish Council would like to have a street 
light installed at the bus shelter on Lincoln Rd at 
the southern end of the village.  Parishioners have 
been asking for this for sometime as there is no 
lighting whatsoever in this well used area where a 
busy footpath to the eastern end of the village 
starts. As the electricity supply is too far away 
there is an opportunity to erect a solar powered 
light.  This would also fit with the ‘Green Glinton’ 
agenda 

£2500.00 

Creating the UK's Environment Capital 
 

 

Posts for protected 
verges in Barnack 
Ward 

Four parishes in Barnack Ward wish to erect 
wooden posts on the verges on both sides of the 
roads at the outer limits of their protected verges: 
Barnack (Mill Road, Green Drift, Wittering Road, 
Wittering Ford Road) 
Ufford (Marholm Road, Langley Bush Road) 
Bainton and Ashton (High Field Road) 
Helpston (King Street, Ailsworth Road, Heath 
Road, Marholm Road) 

£1017.70 

Thorney and Milking 
Nook footpath forum 

The footpath forum would like to take advantage 
of the 5-6m wide verge adjacent to the B1443, 
Thorney Road, to make a safe area for non 
vehicular road users to connect between 
Newborough & Milking Nook. This will be an 
‘improved verge’ not a footpath. They have 
approached the North Level Drainage Board who 
own & manage this drain who are considering the 
request. The current issue with this 1km stretch is 
that it has drainage grips at regular intervals to 
remove the surface water from the road. These 
grips cause the surface to be uneven & once the 
grass is taller could cause a trip or fall, especially 
by a horse.  The improved verge on the Deeping 
Road in Peakirk is now in action & the piping of 
these grips by the Highways Authority has been a 
major feature in its success.   

£5000.00 

Contribution towards 
noise monitoring 
equipment 

This amount is requested as a ‘pooled’ 
contribution between all Neighbourhood Councils 
towards purchase of additional noise monitoring 
equipment for use by the Environmental 
Enforcement Team 

£500.00 

Contribution towards 
mature trees for new 
woodland 

This is a request from the Eye Open Spaces 
group to fund some mature trees for their newly 
planted woodland 
Oak (Qty 20) 
Ash (Qty 3) 
Horn Beam (Qty 15) 
Filed Maple (Qty 11) 
We are awaiting clarification from Price 
Waterhouse Cooper that this can be considered 
capital spend.  If this project is agreed by the 
Neighbourhood Council it will be subject to that 
confirmation. 

£6298.00 

Extension to Thorney 
Park footpath 

At present a footpath skirts the park along its 
eastern flank linking the Wisbech Road with the 

£8000.00 

8



Woburn estate and housing at the eastern end of 
the village.  This is a much used footpath but it 
does not connect to either the children’s play area 
or the Abbey churchyard. The play area is very 
well used and a lot of people coming into the heart 
of the village use the route through the 
churchyard. Access to both the play area and 
churchyard means crossing the grassed areas of 
the park. Unfortunately in wet weather and in 
winter time this can be a very wet and boggy route 
to negotiate especially for young children on their 
bikes, parents with young children in pushchairs 
and for elderly pedestrians, sometimes with their 
shopping trolleys.  Proposal is to have to a new 
footpath that links the existing footpath to the play 
area and the churchyard to make both these 
areas more readily accessible at all times of the 
year and no matter what the weather. 

Total  £48,315.70 

 
 

4. IMPLICATIONS 
 

4.1 This is the largest geographical area covered by any Neighbourhood Council and therefore any 
spend is unlikely to be able to benefit every village within the area. However, any equipment 
purchased through the pooled budget will be used across the area. 
 

5. CONSULTATION 
 

5.1 The suggestions for spend have been made by elected ward Members and Parish Council 
Members.  A consultation meeting with Members took place on 30 November to formulate a 
shortlist of projects.  This shortlist is above and will be voted upon by elected Members in a 
formal process at the Neighbourhood Council meeting.  Where there are any ongoing revenue 
costs, maintenance obligations or ongoing responsibilities for Peterborough City Council the 
projects have been planned in conjunction, and with the agreement of, the relevant teams 
 

6. NEXT STEPS 
 

6.1 If the proposals set out are agreed, the Neighbourhood Manager will be responsible for 
ensuring spend is allocated in a timely manner and in accordance with the Council’s Financial 
Regulations. A regular monitoring report will be provided for Members to be able to scrutinise 
progress and measure the impact of the investment. 
 

7. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 
 

7.1 N/A 
 

8. APPENDICES 
 

8.1 N/A 
 

 

  

9



10

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes from the previous meeting and matters arising
	5 Neighbourhood Council Budget

